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 rom 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax | o8 No 15450047

SCANNED MAR 0 5 2013

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung 2 @ 1 1
benefit trust or private foundation) Open to Public
Department of the Treasury .
Internal Revenue Service » The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements Inspectlon
A For the 2011 calendar year, or tax year beginning July 1 , 2011, and ending June 30 ,20 12
B Check if applicable JC Name of organization Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens | D Employer identification number
[ Address change Doing Business As 13-5658824
3 Name change Number and street (or P O box if mail 1s not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number
(J initral return 6-8 Charlton Street 609-683-0800
D Terminated City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4
[J Amendedreturn  |Princeton New Jersey 08540-5232 G Gross receipts $ 3,810,071
O Application pending | F Name and address of principal officer H(a) Is this a group return for affilates? O ves No
Charles Williams Board President c/o ASCS H{b) Are all affiliates included® [ Yes (] No
I Tax-exempt status 501(c}3) L__] 501(c) ( ) 4 (insertno) D 4947(a)(1) D 527 If “No," attach a Iist {see instructions)
J Website. » H(c) Group exemption number »
K Form of organization [ ] Corporation [rust [ Association [_] Other » | L Year of formation 1881 M State of legal domicile MA
m Summary
Briefly descrnibe the organization's mission or most significant activiies.  The American School of Clasical Studies (ASCS),
® located in the heart of Greece's largest city, 1s one of America's most distinguished centers devoted to advanced study of Greece
% in all historical periods.
£
% 2  Check this box » []if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
g 3  Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . . 3 21
@ | 4  Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 21
Z‘E 5 Total number of individuals employed In calendar year 2011 (Part V, line 2a) 5 31
S| 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) . 6 5
< 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part Vill, column (C), ine 12 . Lo 7a -4,715
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T,ne 34 . . . . . . 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) . . e e 3,477,764 3,696,517
g 9  Program service revenue (Part VI, ne 2g) . 865,321 886,487
;‘Z’ 10  Investment income (Part Vili, col ggg_\ gj ‘Qﬁa:@ ) . 10,929,000 -815,793
11 Other revenue (Part VIil, column ) Iin 8?.': 9c~+8ca g’) 1e) . . 27,216 42,860
12  Total revenue—add lines 8 througr\ 11 gmust €qual Part Vlli,col ﬁfh (A), ine 12) 15,299,301 3,810,071
13  Grants and similar amounts paid ( agt\lx leumnl,&) ines1-3 UL.}_ R 438,743 484,097
14  Benefits paid to or for members (P @_It column_(A),-line= - 0 0
@ 15  Salaries, other compensation, employee Benefits, & lg()‘ CAIL\FXI’] (A) Jhes 5 10) 6,356,467 5,751,118
2 | 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, colLfmn |ne'1'1 e 0 0
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, %‘Iumn D) line 25) »
W47  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), hnes 11a-11d, 11f-24e) . . . . . 4,687,756 5,607,125
18  Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), ine 25) 11,482,966 11,842,340
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract ine 18 fromhne 12 . . . L. 3,816,335 -8,032,269
B§ Beginning of Current Year End of Year
$5/20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) Co . Co 167,789,595 152,553,087
% 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . . . oL 778,503 750,889
23| 2 Net assets or fund balances Subtract line 21 from Iine 20 . . 167,011,092 151,802,198

m Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it 1s
true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) i1s based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge

l

Sign Signatur Date
Here jJ /(ﬂ 2~7-12

Typeor pintnameandtitle  Jopyw T fp/? aquivé, (fo

. ' N
Paid Prmt/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check D i PTI
Preparer self-employed
Use only Frm's name » Firm's EIN »
Firm's address » Phone no
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (seenstructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . [OYes[]No
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat No 11282Y Form 990 (2011)
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Form 990 (2011) Page 2
m Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part Il L .. ]

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission.
The School's mission is (1) to teach the archaeology, art, history, language and literature of Greece from earliest times to present (2)
o survey and excavate archaelogical sites in Greek lands and (3) to publish the results of its research and excavations an-c-l-t-o ______
_maintain library collections

2 Did the organizatton undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? e . Ce e .o .o . OYes No
If “Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes In how it conducts, any program
SEIVICES? . . . . e e e e e e . . . . . [OYes [INo
If “Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule O

4 Describe the organization's program service accomphishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c){4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of
grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported.

4a (Coder ) (Expenses $ - 1,750,652 including grantsof § 383,695 )} (Revenue$ 954,122 )
INStTUCHON AN SO SUP D OIt e,
The School is a non-degree granting overseas research institute, with a 9 month program of study for approximately 20 graduate
level students, an independent study facility for some 80 post graduate s_c_f_n_c_:l_e_l_r_s_ and two 6 week summer programs for about
40 students and teachers. In addition there are 5 study trips made available to students and visiting scholars. The School
_maintains 3- 4 full year faculty. e

4b (Code )(Expenses$ 4,645,954 includinggrantsof $_ 98,376 ) (Revenue$ 1,843,524 )
_Excavations _ h
The School maintains two active excavations . at the Athenian Agora and_g_t_gg_r:l:lit:r}:i&hlch are staffed year round. During the sum_m__g_r_
approximately 40 students take part in an 8 week excavation season at the Agora. Both excavations maintain archaeological )
_collections which are overseen by the Greek Archeological Service,

4c (Code. ) (Expenses $ _ 3.819,118 includng grantsof § 2,025 )(Revenue $ 1,486,578 )
Publication and Libranies e,
The American School maintains and operates two research libraries holding about 222,00 volumes. The Blegen Library has one of
the most complete collections in the world for research in the civilization of ancient Greece. The Gennadius Library houses both
volumes and electronic resources which comprise the most significant collection for the study Hellenic civilization after the end
_of antiquity _ . e
The School publlshes scholarly research In the form of books (4-5 volume;b-é-r-;éér) and a quarterly journal. The current catalogue
of avallable publications numbers around 140 ttles.

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses » 10,215,724

Form 990 (2011)
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Form 990 (2011)
[¥210d Checklist of Required Schedules

1

-3

10

11

12a

13
14a

15

16

17

18

19

20 a3
b

Page 3

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? /f “Yes,”
complete Schedule A .. e o L. e

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)?

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part! . .o
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501( )
election in effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il .

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membershlp dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C,
Part Il .
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part | . e
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, mcludmg easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Il

Did the orgamization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part Il L. . Lo R

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, serve as a custodian for amounts not listed in Part
X, or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services? I/f “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part IV e . e e ..
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted
endowments, permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V

If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions I1s “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
Vil, VIII, IX, or X as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10?7 /f “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part VI e e ... . ..
Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, ine 12 that 1s 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Vil . .
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, hne 13 that s 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Vill .

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, ine 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets
reported tn Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX . .o .

Did the organization report an amount for other habilities in Part X, line 25? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X

Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts X1, Xil, and Xill . .o .

Was the organization included in consolidated, mdependent audxted fmanmal statements for the tax year" If “Yes " and if
the organization answered “No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI, Xi, and Xill is optional

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(1)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E

Did the organization maimntain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts land IV.

Did the orgarnization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any
organization or entity located outside the United States? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV .

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance
to indwviduals located outside the United States? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV

Did the organization report a total of more than $15.000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions)

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part Vill, ines 1¢ and 8a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part Il . .
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII Ime 9a’7

If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part Il

Did the organization operate one or more hospital faC|I|t|es'7 /f "Yes comp/ete Schedule H

If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return’)

Yes | No
1|V
2 |V
3 v
4 v
5 v
6 v
7 v
8 |V
9 v
10 | v
11a} v
11b| v
11c v
11d v
11e v
11f v
12a Y
12b Y
13 | v
14a| v
14b| ¥
15 v
16 | v
17 v
18 | v
19 v
20a v
20b

Form 990 (2011)
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21

22

23

24a

26

27

28

29
30

31

32

33

34

35a

36

37

38

Page 4

' m Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to any government or organization
in the United States on Part IX, column (A), ine 12 If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts | and Il

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to indwviduals in the United States
on Part IX, column (A), line 27 If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts | and il .. L
Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization’s current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J . o Coe e .o P
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was 1ssued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 25 . .

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? .
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? .

Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” 1ssuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transaction
with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part |

Is the organization aware that it engaged In an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?
If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | . e e
Was a loan to or by a current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee highly compensated employee, or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization’s tax year? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee,
substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il .

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L,
Part IV instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV

A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule L, Part IV

An entity of which a current or former offrcer dlrector trustee, or key employee (or a famlly member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, PartlV .

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M

Did the organization hquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operahons” If “Yes " complete Schedu/e N,
Part | S . .o ;

Did the organization sell, exchange dlspose of or transfer more than 25% of its net assets’? lf “Yes
complete Schedule N, Part Il .. .. ..

Did the organization own 100% of an entity dlsregarded as separate from the organrzatron under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part | . .
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? /f “Yes,” comp/ete Schedule R Pan‘s i, i,
V,and V, line 1 . . e e e e .

Did the organization have a controlled entrty within the meaning of section 512(b)(1 3)

Did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity within the
meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . .
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non- charltable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . e e

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that i1s not a related organization
and that 1s treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R,

Part VI . .. .

Did the organlzatlon complete Schedule O and prowde explanatrons n Schedule O for Part Vi, lmes 11 and
192 Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O .

Yes | No
21 v
22 v
23 |V
24a v
24b
24c
24d
25a v
25b 4
26 v
27| |V
28a v
28b v
28c v
29 | v
30 v
31 v
32 v
33 v
34 v
35a v
35b Y
36 Y
37 v
38 |V

Form 990 (2011)



. Form 990 (2011)
XA  Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Page 5

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part V O
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter -0-if not applicable . . . 1a 29
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included In line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . .. 1b . 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? 1ic | v
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmlttal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 2a 31
b If at least one Is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b |V
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a Is greater than 250, you may be required to e-filfe (see instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a | v
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O . 3b |V
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account In a forelgn country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
account)? . Co .o 4a l v
b If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country. »  Greece, UK
See instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts.
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 5a v
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or 1s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b v
¢ If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100 OOO and dld the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible? . 6a | v
b If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contrlbutlons or
gifts were not tax deductible? 6b | v
7 Organizations that may receive deductlble contrlbutlons under sectlon 170(c)
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? . L. Co o R 7a | v
b If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? b | v
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dlspose of tangible personal property for which |t was
required to file Form 82827 . . . .. . 7c v
d If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed dunng theyear . . . . . 7d
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? | 7e v
f Dud the organization, duning the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . 7f v
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? | 7g
h  If the organization receved a contnbution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting
organizations. Did the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring
organization, have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the organization make any taxable distnbutions under section 49667 . 9a
b Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person’? 9b
10  Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Imtiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIl, ine 12 . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club faculmes 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or pald to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) . R .o . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization fiing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year 12b
13  Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization i1s licensed to 1ssue qualified health plans Lo .o 13b
¢ Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . 13c
14a Dud the organization receive any payments for mdoor tanmng services durmg the tax year’? . . 14a
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No, " provide an explanation in Schedule O 14b

Form 990 (2011)




Form 990 (2011) Page 6

N Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a “No

n

response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule Q. See instructions.

1a

~NOoO O b

a
b
9

10a
b

11a

12a

13
14
15

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any questioninthis PartVI . . . . . . . . . Co ]
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes | No
Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year . 1a 21
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authonty to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain in Schedule O.
Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent . 1b 21
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relat|onsh|p with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . 2 v
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customanly performed by or under the d|rect
supervision of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 v
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 v
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 v
Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 v
Did the organmization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
one or more members of the governing body? . . . . . . .o 7a v
Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . .o . . 7b Y
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or wnitten actions undertaken dunng
the year by the following
The governing body? . . . . .o .o . .o 8a |V
Each committee with authonty to acl on behalf of the governing body’? . 8b|v
Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization’'s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses in Schedule O . P 9 v
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affliates? . . 10a v
If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governmg the actlvmes of such chapters
affihates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? | 11a| v
Describe in Schedule O the process, If any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go to line 13 . . . 12a| v
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give nse to confllcts’7 12b| vV
Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the pol|cy'7 If “Yes,”
describe in Schedule O how thiswasdone . . . . e e L. 12¢| v
Did the organization have a written whistleblower polucy” .o . o .o 13|V
Did the organization have a written document retention and destructlon pohcy" - 14 |/
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official A .o R 15a| v
Other officers or key employees of the organization . . e . 15b| v

16a

If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, descnbe the process in Schedule O (see lnstructlons)

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? . .o . . .o .o . 16a v
If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . e e e 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 I1s required to be filed »  MA, NY, NJ

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 890, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only)
available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available Check all that apply.

[0 ownwebsite  [J Another's website Upon request

Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how), the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,
and financial statements available to the public duning the tax year.

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the
organization. » R Rosolino, ASCS, 6-8 Charlyon Street, Princeton NJ 08540-5232 Tele:609-683-0800

Form 990 (2011)




Form 990 (2011) Page 7

) m Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and

Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VIl . . C e 0
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization’s tax year.

¢ List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation Enter -0-in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid

* List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any. See instructions for definition of “key employee.”

* List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

¢ List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

* List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations
List persons in the following order individual trustees or directors, Institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest
compensated employees, and former such persons

[0 Check this box If neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(C)
®) (B) Position (D) (E) G
(do not check more than one
Name and Titie Average box, unless person 1s both an Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | officer and a director/trustee) | COmpensation (compensation from amount of
week eS|l ol = ezl from related other
(describe | 2 3| 2|=|2&|3&5]|¢ the organizations compensation
hoursfor | 3 é 2|18 e %g CBD organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related | SE 15| |3|BE| " |W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| 8 | 8 8178 and related
n Schedule Gl = e 2 organizations
0) 3|& 3
@ 8‘ 8
© T
Q
_{1) Charles wilhams
Board Chair 1.0 v v 0 0 0
{2) Robert McCabe
Board President 1.0 v v 0 0 0
_(3)Henry Davis
Board Treasurer 1.0 v v 0 0 0
(4) willlam Loomis
Board Secretary 1.0 v v 0 0 0
_(5) Joan Bingham
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
_(6) Andrew Bridges
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(7) Jane Buikstra
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(8) Jonatham Cohen
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(9) Paul Friedland |
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(10) Elizabeth Gebhard
Trustee 1.0 v (] 0 0
(11) Mary Lefkowitz
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(12) J Robert Maguire
Trustee 1.0 |V 0 0 0
(13) James R McCredie
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(14) Nassos Michas
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0

Form 990 (2011)
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Page 8

‘ m Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

()
() (B) Position () (E) F
(do not check more than one
Name and title Average | pox, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | officer and a director/trustee) | compensation | compensation from amount of
week o5 slol=laz] o from related other
(describe sz 2|2 gg Q the organizations compensation
hours for 5 (51 (8| e R ?D organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related | 18| " |21 52| " [w-21099-MisC) organization
organizations| 2 =2 ] S and related
in Schedule G|z 8 B organizations
o) gla 2
e 8
2
(15) Hunter Rawlings
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
{16) Damaris Skouras
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(17) wilham Slaughter
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
{18) Phaedon Tamvakakis
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
{(19) Judith Thomson
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(20) Malcoln Wiener
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(21) Alexander Zagoreos
Trustee 1.0 v 0 0 0
(22) Pantelis Panos (Euro paid Employee-no W2)
General Manages 40.0 Y 186,377 0 29,094
(23) Irene Romano
Administrative Director 40.0 v 141,948 0 13,464
{24) Jack Davis (see notes on Schedule J)
Director of the School 40.0 v 1,979 0 30,000
(25) Jack Sproule (PT) N
CFO 10.0 v 34,725 0 0
1b Sub-total . e e . . > 365,029 0 72,558
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part Vil, Section A > 250,228 0 34,319
d Total {(add lines 1b and 1c) . .. N > 615,257 0 106,877
2 Total number of individuals (including but not imited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 6
Yes| No
3 D the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . .. 3 v
4  For any individual Iisted on line 1a, 1s the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007 /f “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
individual . 4 |y
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person 5 v
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Compilete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax
year.
(A) (B) €
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
Mayo Capital Investment Services 302,975
University of Cincinnati (note on Schedule J, Partill) Personnel Services 232,664
J W Bristol Investment Services 157,353
KPMG Audit Services 115,520
J McCarthy Office Rent 101,996

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not mited to those listed above) who

received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization »

5

Form 990 (2011)
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" BELA'I Statement of Revenue

Page 9

(A)
Total revenue

(B)
Related or
exempt
function
revenue

(C)
Unrelated
business

revenue

(D)
Revenue
excluded from tax
under sections
512, 513, or 514

Contributions, Gifts, Grants
and Other Similar Amounts

1

-0 Q0T

= (=]

Federated campaigns . . . | 1a

0

Membershipdues . . . . | 1b

0

Fundraising events .. . 1 1c

12,550

Related organizations . . 1d

0

Government grants (contnbutxons) 1e

255,794

All other contributions, gifts, grants,
and similar amounts not included above | 1f

3,428,173

Noncash contributions inctuded in lines 1a-1f §
Total. Add lines 1a-1f .

3,696,517

Program Service Revenue

2a

«a@ o a oo

Tuition and Fees

Business Code

611710

522,151

522,151

Publication Sales

611710

160,536

160,536

[=]

Miscellaneous

611710

203,800

203,800

All other program service revenue
Total. Add hines 2a-2f .

>

886,487

Other Revenue

6a

(7]

7a

8a

Investment income (including d|V|dends

and other similar amounts)

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds P

Royalties

Interest,
»

2,059,791

-4,715

2,064,506

0

o

00

»

0

.(I) F;eal

() Personal

Gross rents

Less. rental expenses

Rental income or (loss)

Net rental income or (loss)

>

Gross amount from sales of (1) Secunties

. ()] bth;ar

assets other than inventory 336,154,228

Less. cost or other basis

and sales expenses 339,029,812

-2,875,584

Gain or (loss) .

Net gain or (loss)

Gross income from fundraising
events (not including $ 12,550

of contributions reported on line 1c)
SeePartlV,ine18 . . . . . g
Less directexpenses . . . . b
Net income or (loss) from fundraising
Gross income from gaming activities
See Part IV, line 19 a
Less: direct expenses . . . b
Net income or (loss) from gammg acti
Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances . . . g

Less' cost of goods sold . b

-2,875,584

-2,875,584

76,360

33,500

events . P

42,860

42,860

vittes . . P

0

0

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory . . P

Miscellaneous Revenue

Business Code

11a

o Q0

12

-:AII other revenue .
Total. Add lines 11a-11d .
Total revenue. See instructions.

0

3,810,071

vy

3,810,071

886,487

-4,715

-762,215

Form 990 (2011)
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IEZMEY Statement of Functional Expenses

pPage 10

Section 501(c)(3} and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A) but are not
required to complete columns (B), (C), and (D}

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part IX . ]
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, Total éﬁl))enses Prograg)semce Mana é%)em and Fun ég)lsm
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part ViIl. ° expenses genergl expenses expensesg
1  Grants and other assistance to governments and
organizations in the United States. See Part IV, line 21 0 0
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the United States See Part IV, line 22 0
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States See Part IV, lines 15and 16 . 484,097 484,097
4  Benefits paid to or for members 0 0
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees . 350,238 103,156 133,524 113,558
6  Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 0 0 0 0
7  Other salaries and wages . 4,067,558 3,333,906 652,559 81,093
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (mclude
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contnibutions) 180,642 107,818 51,528 21,296
9  Other employee benefits . 442,133 401,677 32,427 8,029
10  Payroll taxes . 710,547 639,654 56,822 14,071
11 Fees for services (non- employees)
a Management 0 0 0 0
b Legal 64,416 33,208 31,208 0
¢ Accounting 119,277 119,277 0 0
d Lobbying . . 0 0 0 0
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV Ime 17 0 0
f Investment management fees 455,892 455,892 0 0
g Other 0 0 0 0
12  Advertising and promotlon 90,864 0 0 90,864
13  Office expenses 318,715 264,160 43,924 10,631
14  Information technology 0 0 0 0
15  Royalties . 0 0 0 0
16 Occupancy 108,020 54,010 45,909 8,101
17  Travel . 54,226 43,447 4,796 5,983
18 Payments of travel or entertalnment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials 0 0 0 0
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 101,252 90,893 6,734 3,625
20 Interest . . 0 0 0 0
21 Payments to afflllates . 0 0 0 0
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzatlon 669,453 648,322 21,131 0
23 Insurance . e 229,125 122,057 107,068 0
24  Other expenses Itemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list ine 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
a Excavation Expenses 1,579,638 1,579,638 0 0
b Instructional Costs 707,681 707,681 0 00
¢ Library Additions/Costs ) 500,437 500,437 0
d Utilities 465,343 383,608 65,389 16,346
e All other expenses Publications Costs 142,786 142,786 0 0
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 11,842,340 10,215,724 1,253,019 373,597
26 Joint costs. Complete this Ine only if the

organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campagn and
fundraising solicitation. Check here » [] if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2011)
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" I Balance Sheet

Page 11

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing 1,298,769 1 861,569
2 Savings and temporary cash investments . 0] 2 0
3 Pledges and grants recevable, net 797,505 3 439,300
4  Accounts recelvable, net 306,840| 4 839,389
5 Recewvables from current and former offlcers dlrectors trustees key
employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete Part Il of
Schedule L . RN . ol 5 0
6 Recewvables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958(f(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c9) voluntary
& employees' beneficiary organizations (see instructions) oL ol 6 0
z 7 Notes and loans receivable, net of 7 0
< | 8 Inventories for sale or use 0l 8 0
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 90,766 9 128,906
10a Land, builldings, and equipment: cost or
other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 19,006,628
Less. accumulated depreciation . . . 10b 13,362,355 5,947,107| 10c 5,644,273
11 Investments—pubilicly traded securities 121,692,776 11 107,725,396
12 Investments —other securities. See Part IV, line 11 37,155,875| 12 36,492,389
13  Investments—program-related See Part IV, line 11 0| 13 0
14  Intangible assets 0| 14 0
15  Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 499,957 15 421,865
16  Total assets. Add Iines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 167,789,595, 16 152,553,087
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 612,225| 17 595,334
18 Grants payable . 0| 18 0
19  Deferred revenue . 166,278 19 155,555
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities . 0| 20 0
21  Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D. 0| 21 0
@ |22 Payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
= employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.
"b; Complete Part !l of Schedule L e ol 22 0
3 (23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 0| 23 0
24  Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 0l 24 0
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other habilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X 0 0
of Schedule D . 25
26 Total liabilities. Add Iines 17through 25 778,503| 26 750,889
" Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here » and complete
e lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
5127 Unrestricted net assets 76,189,050| 27 68,007,483
g 28 Temporarlly restricted net assets . 67,758,329| 28 60,340,534
T 29  Permanently restricted net assets . . 23,063,713( 29 23,454,181
& Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here > [] and
5 complete lines 30 through 34.
9130 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . . 30
§ 31  Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 31
< | 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 32
g 33 Total net assets or fund balances . 167,011,092| 33 151,802,198
34 Total habilities and net assets/fund balances 167,789,595 34 152,553,087

Form 990 (2011)



Form 990 (2011)
" X Reconciliation of Net Assets

Page 12

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part X O
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), ine 12) 1 3,810,071
2  Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 -11,842,340
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . 3 -8,032,269
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X Ilne 33 column A) . 4 167,011,092
5 Other changes In net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) . 5 7,176,625
6 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 3, 4, and 5 (must equal Part X line 33,
column (B)) : 6 151,802,198
XX Financial Statements and Reportlng
Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XII . O
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: [JCash [“JAccrual [ Other
if the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain In
Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . 2a v
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . 2b | vV
¢ If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for over3|ght
of the audtt, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c |V
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.
d If “Yes” to ne 2a or 2b, check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were
1ssued on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both-
Separate basts  [] Consolidated basis  [] Both consolidated and separate basis
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133? 3a v
b If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audlts'7 if the organlzatlon d|d not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits 3b

Form 990 (2011)




SCHEDULE A
* (Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Public Charity Status and Public Support

Complete If the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

» Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. » See separate instructions.

| OMB No 1545-0047

2011

Open to Public

Inspection

Name of the organization )
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens

Employer identification number
13-5658824

Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization i1s not a private foundation because 1t 1s {For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)
1 [JA church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E.)
3 [ A hosprtal or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1){A)(iii).
4 [ A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the

hospital’s name, city, and state:

5 [JAn organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental umt described In

section 170(b)(1){A)(iv). (Complete Part Il.)

6 [ A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A){(v).

7 [] An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il )

8 [ A community trust described in section 170(b){1)(A){vi). (Complete Part Il

9 Oan organization that normally receives' (1) more than 33'/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33'/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part IIl.)

10
11

(] An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).
(J An organrzation organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the

purposes of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2) See section
509(a)(3). Check the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h.

a [J Typel b O Typell

¢ [ Type lll-Functionally mntegrated

d [1 Type lll-Other

e [ By checking this box, | certify that the orgarization 1s not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1)

or section 509(a)(2).

f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it 1s a Type |, Type I, or Type |l supporting

organization, checkthisbox . . . . Co

g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the

following persons?

{i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (1) and

(m) below, the governing body of the supported organization?

(i) A family member of a person described in (1) above? .
(iii) A 35% controlled entity of a person described n (1) or (1) above?

h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(]

Yes | No

11g(1)
11g(n)
11g(in)

{1} Name of supported () EIN () Type of organization | (v} Is the organization (v) Did you notify {vi) Is the (v) Amount of
organization (described on lines 1-9 | inco! (1)) isted inyour | the organization n | organization in col support
above or IRC section governing document? col {1) of your (1) organized in the
(see instructions)) support? us?
Yes No Yes No Yes No

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Cat No 11285F Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011

Form 990 or 990-EZ.



Version A, cycle 1

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2011 Page 2
" EIZXI Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b){1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or If the organization failed to qualify under
Part [ll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Iil.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2007 (b) 2008 (c) 2009 (d) 2010 (e) 2011 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual grants ") .

2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid
to or expended on 1its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

Total. Add lines 1 through 3

§ The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) Included on
hne 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f)

6  Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » {(a) 2007 (b) 2008 {c) 2009 (d) 2010 (e) 2011 {f) Total
7  Amounts from line 4
8 Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties and income from similar
sources e .
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
IS regularly carried on .
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explainin Part IV.) .

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) . . . . . 12 |
13  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, thlrd fourth or flfth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . . . e .o N N
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14  Public support percentage for 2011 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column () . . . 14 %
15  Public support percentage from 2010 Schedule A, Part Il, line 14 . .. 15 %
16a 33'13% support test—2011. If the organization did not check the box on line 13 and I|ne 14 I 33‘/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . N
b 33%3% support test—2010. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and Ilne 15 1S 33‘/3% or more,
check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization R N

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2011. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and hne 14 1s

10% or more, and If the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in

Part IV how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization . .o . . .o . . . - oo » O

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2010. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line

1515 10% or more, and If the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.

Explain in Part IV how the organlzatlon meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test The organmzation quahfles as a publicly

supported organization . . . .o > [
18 Private foundation. If the organlzatlon d|d not check a box on I|ne 13, 16a 16b 17a or 17Db, check th|s box and see
instructions . . . . . . . . .o .o . .. .o e » O

Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-E2) 2011




Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011 Page 3

' m Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 9 of Part | or if the organization falled to qualify under Part II.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support

1

2

c
8

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2007 {b) 2008 {c) 2009 (d) 2010 (e) 2011 (f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received (Do notinclude any "unusual grants.")
Gross recelpts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or faciities
furnished In any activity that 1s related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and erther pad
to or expended on its behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
orgamzation without charge .
Total. Add lines 1 through 5 .

Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

Amounts Included on lines 2 and 3
recaived from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

Add lines 7a and 7b
Public support (Subtract line 7¢ from
line 6.) .

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » {(a) 2007 (b) 2008 (c) 2009 (d) 2010 (e) 2011 (f) Total

9
10a

11

12

13

14

Amounts from line 6 ..

Gross Income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties and income from similar sources .

Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 .

Add lines 10a and 10b

Net income from unrelated busmess
activities not included in line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on

Other income Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explainin Part IV.) .

Total support. (Add lines 9, 100 11,
and 12.) .o

First five years. If the Form 990 i1s for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c){3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . L R, . .. >

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15
16

Public support percentage for 2011 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f) 15 %
Public support percentage from 2010 Schedule A, Part lll, Ine 15 . L 16 %

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage

17

18

19a
b

20

Investment income percentage for 2011 (ine 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) .17 %
Investment income percentage from 2010 Schedule A, Part lll, ine 17 . . . 18 %
33%3% support tests—2011. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and I|ne 15 Is more than 33'3%, and line

17 1s not more than 3313%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . » []
3313% support tests—2010. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33'1%, and
iine 18 1s not more than 33'3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization » []
Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  » []

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011 Page 4
) m Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10;

Part Il, line 17a or 17b; and Part lll, line 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See
instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011




SCHEbULE D . . | omsNo 15450047
" (Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements 2011

» Complete if the organization answered “Yes,” to Form 990, i
Part IV, line 6,7, 8,9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. Open to Public

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service > Attach to Form 990. » See separate instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School at Athens 13-5658824

IEZXIH  Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the

organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.
(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year . . na
Aggregate contributions to (during year) .
Aggregate grants from (during year)
Aggregate value at end of year .
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? . . . . . . [] Yes [ No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
confernng impermissible private beneftt? . . . .o [ Yes (] No
IEZI  Conservation Easements. Complete if the organlzatlon answered “Yes™ 1o Form 990, Part IV, ine 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
[0 Preservation of land for public use (e g., recreation or education) [] Preservation of an historically important land area
[J Protection of natural habitat [ Preservation of a certified historic structure
[ Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year.

L WN =

Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation easements . . . . . . . . .o .o 2a na
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . .o 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified histonc structure mcIuded n (a) 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register . . . 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released extmgunshed or termlnated by the orgarization during the
tax year »

4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located P

5 Does the organization have a wntten policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easementsitholds? . . . . . . . . . . [ Yes U No
6  Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

|
7  Amount of expenses incurred In monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

>3
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B) ,

() and section 170(h)@)B)m)? . . . . o e e e e o [J Yes (0 No

9 In Part XIV, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization’s accounting for conservation easements.
I Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part 1V, Iine 8.
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other stmilar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide, in Part XIV, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items
b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items.
(i) Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIl line 1 Coe . . R - na
(i) Assets included In Form 990, Part X . . . R A
2  If the organization received or held works of art hlstoncal treasures or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items.
a Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIIl, ine 1 . . . e L. > $ na
b Assets included in Form 990, PartX . . . . . . . . . . e . . > 3
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2011




Schedule D (Form 990) 2011 Page 2
" IEZTIN  Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):
a Public exhibition
b Scholarly research
c Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part
XW.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? [] Yes No
Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV,
line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.
1a s the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

d [ Loan or exchange programs
e [ Other

included on Form 990, Part X? . e . . J Yes [] No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIV and complete the following table:
Amount
¢ Beginning balance . . . e . .o .o 1c na
d Additions during the year . . .o . . - . 1d
e Distnbutions duringtheyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 1e
f Endingbalance . . . . .. 1f
2a Did the organization |nclude an amount on Form 990 Part X hne 21’7 . [ Yes [] No

b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIV.
m Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, Iine 10.

(a) Current year {b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance 158,214,025 135,278,117 139,229,555 192,736,939
b Contributions . 390,468 292,563 275,356 2,247,480
¢ Net investment earnings, galns and
losses . . co -7,870,785 30,229,427 4,274,064 -47,545,581
d Grants or scholarships -588,938 -566,725 -544,729 -524,981
e Other expenditures for facilities and
programs . -1,488,037 -7,019,357 -7,956,129 -7,684,302
f Administrative expenses . 0 0 0 0
g End of year balance 142,656,733 158,214,025 135,278,117 139,229,555
2  Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (Iine 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment » 54 %
b Permanentendowment » 46 %
¢ Temporanly restricted endowment » | 0%
The percentages in lines 2a, 2b, and 2c¢ should equal 100%
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by Yes| No
(i) unrelated organizations . . . - .o - .o o e 3ali) v
(i) related organizations . . . . o . . 3al(ii) v
b If “Yes” to 3a(i), are the related orgamzatlons llsted as requrred on Schedule R" e 3b
4  Describe in Part XIV the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
I Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property {(a) Cost or other basis | (b) Cost or other basis (¢} Accumulated {d) Book value
(nvestment) (other) depreciation
1a Land 1 1
b Buldings . . 15,484,375 10,119,083 5,365,292
¢ Leasehold lmprovements 0 0 0
d Equipment 3,522,252 3,243,272 278,980
e Other 0 0 0
Total. Add lines 1athrough 1e (Co/umn (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).) . > 5,644,273

Schedule D (Form 990) 2011




Schedule D (Form 990) 2011

Page 3

" IEZUYI  investments —Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category
{including name of security)

(b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives
(2) Closely-held equity interests

(3) Other Mutual funds-government obllgauons 17,609,598 | Market
(A) International Value Equity Trust 12,233,122 |Market
(B) Limited Partnership 5,964,958 | Participant Equity
__(C) Pprivate Equity 534,420(Partner Equity
(D) Foreign Currency Contracts 150,291 |Market
(E)
(F) N
(G)
(H)
()
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12) » 36,492,389
Investments —Program Related. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment type

(b) Book value

{c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

)

]

)

G

()

()

U]

{8)

9

{10)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 390, Part X, col (B) hine 13) »

IZLEd  Other Assets. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description

{b) Book value

(1) Accrued interest-Dividends Receivable

421,865

(0)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.)

. > 421,865

lm Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

{a) Description of hability

{b) Book value

1) Federal income taxes

{10)

()

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B)line 25) »

2. FIN 48 (ASC 740) Footnote. In Part XIV, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
orgamization’s hability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)

Schedule D {Form 990) 2011



Schedule D (Form 990) 2011 Page 4
' mneconciliation of Change in Net Assets from Form 990 to Audited Financial Statements

1 Total revenue (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . .. . o .o 1 3,810,071
2  Total expenses (Form 990, Part IX, column (A), ine 25) 2 11,842,340
3  Excess or (deficit) for the year Subtract line 2 from line 1 3 -8,032,269
4  Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 4 7,176,625
5 Donated services and use of facilities 5 0
6 Investment expenses . 6 0
7  Prior period adjustments . 7 0
8  Other (Describe In Part XIV ) . e e e .o .. 8 0
9 Total adjustments (net) Add lines 4 through 8 . .o . 9 -7,176,625
10  Excess or (deficit) for the year per audited financial statements. Comblne (lnes 3 and 9 e 10 -15,208,894
IZXET  Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

1  Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financiai statements . e 1 -3,822,446
2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 930, Part Vi, line 12.

a Netunrealized gains on investments . . . . o . | 2a -71,176,625

b Donated services and use of facilities . . . .o - 2b 0

¢ Recoveries of prior year grants . Lo o 2¢ 0

d Other (Describe in Part XiV.) . .. - .o .. | ad 0

e Add lines 2a through 2d . e e .o .o e e 2e -1,176,625
3  Subtract line 2e from line 1 .o . e e e 3 3,354,179
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII hne 12 but not onlne1 -

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Viil, ine7b . . | 4a 455,892

b Other (DescrbemnPartXiV). . . . . . . . . . R 4b 0

¢ Addines4aand4b . . - e . . . . . |4 455,892
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c (Th/s must equal Form 990 Partl I/ne 12) . .o 5 3,810,071

m Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . R . . 1 11,386,448
2 Amounts included on Iine 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, ine 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities . . L . . | 2a 0

b Prior year adjustments . . . . e N ) 0

¢ Other losses . - .o . .o 2c 0

d Other (Describe in Part XIV) e . R < 0

e Addlnes2athrough2d . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e e s | 2e 0
3 Subtract ine 2e fromlinet1 . . . . Coe e Coe 3 11,386,448
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, I|ne 25, but not on Ime 1

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIlI, line 7b . | 4a 455,892

b Other (Describe inPart XIV). . . .o e . 4b 0

¢ Addlnesd4aand4b . . . . e 4c 455,892
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c (I‘ h:s must equa/ Form 990 Padl Ilne 18 ) S 5 11,842,340

EEEQT  Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part |l, ines 3, 5, and 9, Part Ill, ines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b;
Part V, line 4; Part X, hne 2; Part X, line 8, Part XlI, ines 2d and 4b, and Part XIll, lines 2d and 4b Also complete this part to provide
any additional information.

Schedule D Part lll Line 1a - Works of art and historical treasurers are held as part of collections - for educational and or research - and are

not capitalized in the financial statements.

Schedule D Part |ll Line 4 - The School's libraries maintain volumes for scholarly research on ancient and modern Greece. The collections

maintained at the the excavation sites provide materials for research and or are preserved for future generations.

‘Schedule D Part V Line 4 - The School's Endowments are intended to support the long term educationaliresearch activity of the institution.

The objective is to preserve principal while maintaining the purchasing power of the funds invested.

Schedule D {Form 990) 2011




Schedule D (Form 930) 2011 Page 5
' EREO  Supplemental Information (continued)
| ——

' Schedule D (Form 990) 2011



SCHEDULE E Schools | omeNo 1545-0047

* (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2@ 1 1

Open to Public
Inspection

» Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 13, or
Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 48.

Department of the Treasu ' 4

Intgrnal Revenue Service i > Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Name of the organization Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824

1 Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter,
bylaws, other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? o o 1 v

2 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscniminatory policy toward students in all its
brochures, catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions,
programs, and scholarships? . .. A .o . . e e 2 v

3 Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media
during the period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period if it has no solicitation program,
in a way that makes the policy known to all parts of the general community 1t serves? If “Yes,” please
describe. If “No,” please explain. If you need more space, use Part Il . . .. e . 3 /
_A statement of nondiscrimination is published in brochures, on the School's web site and in public
announcements used to advertise program offerings.

YES| NO

4  Does the orgamization maintain the following?

a Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? . 4a | v
b Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially
nondiscriminatory basis? - . . . 4 | v
¢ Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the publlc deahng
with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? . RN . RN 4c | ¥
d Copies of all matenal used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contnbuhons” .o . .o 4dd | v

If you answered “No” to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part ||

5 Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to:

a Students’ nghts or privileges? . . . e .o e e . Sa v
b Admissions policies? . . . . Coe .o .o . .o .o 5b v
¢ Employment of faculty or administrative staff? . . . .o o o 5¢ v
d Scholarships or other financial assistance? . . . .. R e C 5d v
e Educational policies? . . .o o .o . .o . 5e v
f Useoffacilities? . . . . . . . . Coe A S R 5¢ v
g Athletic programs? . . . . . . . . Co . .o S . 59 v
h Other extracurricular activities? . .o . 5h v

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, please explam If you need more space use Part Il

6a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? . . . . . 6a| v

b Has the organization’s right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? . . . . . . . . . 6b v
If you answered “Yes" to either line 6a or line 6b, explain on Part Il

7 Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through

4.05 of Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscnimination? If “No,” explain on Part li . . 7 v

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Cat No 50085D Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) {2011)




Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2011) Page 2

' m Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part I, hnes 3, 4d, 5h,
6b, and 7, as applicable. Also complete this part to provide any other additional information (see instructions).

Schedule E {(Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2011)




+ (Form 990)

SCI:IEbULE F | OMB No 1545-0047

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

2011

Open to Public

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.

Department of the Treasury » Attach to Form 990. » See separate instructions.

Internal Revenue Service
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824

Inspection

Part| General Information on Activities Qutside the United States. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to
Form 990, Part |V, line 14b.

1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other
assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection critena used to award the
grants or assistance? . [“lYes [INo

2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization’s procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other
assistance outside the United States.

3 Activities per Region (The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space I1s needed )

{a) Region {b) Number of | {c) Number of (d) Activities conducted in (e) If activity histed in (d) 1s (f) Total
offices in the employees, region {by type) (e g, a program service, expenditures for
region agents, and fundraising, program services, descrnibe specific type of and investments
independent investments, service(s) in region In region
contractors grants to recipients
in region located n the region)

(1) Europe Greece 1 66 Program Services Instruction 1,634,419

(2) Libraries 2,519,730

(3) Excavations 2,655,932

(4) Student Services 484,097

(5) Fund Raising 12,980
(6)
@
8
(9
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(19)
(16)
(17)

3a Sub-total . . . . . . 7,307,158

b Total from continuation
sheets to Part | . 0
¢ Totals (add lines 3a and 3b) 7,307,158

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50082W

Schedule F (Form 990) 2011
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Schedule F (Form 990) 2011 Page 4

" B Foreign Forms

1  Was the organization a U S. transferor of property to a foreign corporation dunng the tax year? If “Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 926, Return by a U.S Transferor of Property to a Foreign
Corporation (see Instructions for Form 926) . . . - o . ] Yes No

2 Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? If “Yes,” the organization
may be required to file Form 3520, Annual Return to Report Transactions with Foreign Trusts and
Receipt of Certain Foreign Gifts, and/or Form 3520-A, Annual Information Return of Foretgn Trust With a
U S. Owner (see Instructions for Forms 3520 and 3520-A) . . . . . . . . e ] Yes No

3 Dud the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? If “Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U.S. Persons With Respect To
Certain Foreign Corporations (see Instructions for Form 5471) e e .o [ Yes No

4 Was the organization a direct or indirect shareholder of a passive foreign investment company or a
qualified electing fund during the tax year? If “Yes,” the orgamzation may be required to file Form 8621,
Information Return by a Shareholder of a Passive Foreign Investment Company or Qualified Electing
Fund. (see Instructions for Form 8621) .o .o .o . .o O vYes No

5 Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? If “Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons With Respect To Certain
Foreign Partnerships. (see Instructions for Form 8865) . . . . .o e e . O Yes No

6 Dud the organization have any operations in or related to any boycotting countries during the tax year? If
“Yes,” the organization may be required to file Form 5713, International Boycott Report (see Instructions
for Form 5713) . . .o . Co. - S 7 ves No

Schedule F (Form 990) 2011
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Page 5

) Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the information required by Part |, line 2 {momnitoring of funds); Part [, line 3, column (f)
(accounting method; amounts of investments vs. expenditures per region); Part Il, ine 1 (accounting method), Part Il
(accounting method), and Part I, column (c) (estimated number of recipients), as applicable Also complete this part to

provide any additional information (see instructtons).

_Schedule F part | Line 2 - students (both US and non US citizens) are granted financial aid in Greece. All students receiving aid are enrolled

independent research at the School's facilities.

Students study within and in contact with the School community in Greece

Schedule F (Form 990) 2011




SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding | OMBNo 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-E2) undraising or Gaming Activities 2011
Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, lines 17, 18, or 19, or if the

Department of the Treasury organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a. Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. P> See separate instructions. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer dentification number

Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 17.
Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.
1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities Check all that apply

a Mail solicitations e Solicitation of non-government grants
b Internet and email solicitations f Solicitation of government grants
c Phone solicitations g Special fundraising events

d In-person solicitations
2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees
or key employees listed in Form 990, Part Vil) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? [ Yes No
b If “Yes,” list the ten highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser 1s to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

{v) Amount paid to
() Name and address of individual (m) Did fundrasser have | ) Gross receipts (or retained by) (vi) Amount paid to

or entity (fundraiser) () Activity cuségg{,&,ﬁgﬂgg, of from actity fundralselr(h)sted n w&';;ﬁ'.??ﬁio%w
col @

Yes No

10

Total . . . . e P

3  List all states in which the organization Is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified 1t 1s exempt from
registration or licensing

Massachuttes
New York
New Jersey

Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat No 50083H Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011



Schedule ‘G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011

Page 2

Fundraising Events. Complete If the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, Iine 18, or reported more

than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b List events with
gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 {b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events
Annual Dinner na na (agd col (Ia) through
(event type) (event type) (total number) col {eh
®| 1 Grossrecelpts 88,910 88,910
& Less: Charitable
contributions 12,550 12,550
3 Gross income (ine 1 minus
hne 2) . 76,360 76,360
0 0
4 Cashpnzes .
5 Noncash prizes 0 0
[2]
31 6 Rent/facility costs . 24,456 24,456
®
Q
51 7 Food and beverages . ] ]
3
5 8 Entertainment 0 0
9  Other direct expenses 9,044 9,044
10 Direct expense summary Add lines 4 through 9 1n column (d) > |( 33,500 )
11 Netincome summary. Combine line 3, column (d), and line 10 > 42,860

than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

Gaming. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990 Part IV I|ne 19 or reported more

(b) Pull tabs/instant

{d) Total gaming (add

()
é’ (a) Bingo bingo/progressive bingo (c) Other gaming col (a) through col (c))
4
¢
1 Gross revenue . na
$| 2 Cashprizes .
2| 3 Noncash prizes
w
§ 4 Rent/facility costs .
(a]
5§  Other direct expenses
O Yes % Yes % O Yes %
6 Volunteer labor . ] No [] No [J No
7  Drrect expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d) > | )
8 Net gaming income summary. Combine line 1, column d, and line 7 >
9  Enter the state(s) in which the organization operates gaming activites.
a Is the organization licensed to operate gaming activities in each of these states? O Yes J No
b If “No,” explain.
10a Were any of the organization’s gaming licenses revoked, suspended or terminated during the taxny-/-e_é-r; ----------- I:]Yes[:]No
b If “Yes,” explain.

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011 Page 3

11 Does the organization operate gaming activities with nonmembers? . [J Yes [ No
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust or a member of a partnershlp or other entity
formed to administer charitable gaming? . . . . . . . . . . e e e e [ Yes [] No
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity operated in.
a The organization’s facility . e . o .o 13a %
b An outside facility . 13b %
14  Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organlzatron s gammg/spemal events books and
records’
Name » B
Address »

15a Does the orgamization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming
revenue”? . .o .o . . ] Yes [J No
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organizaton®» § and the
amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party > $
c If "Yes,” enter name and address of the third party.

Name »

Address P

16  Gaming manager information

Name »

Gaming manager compensation »  $

Description of services provided »

[] Director/officer [l Employee [] Independent contractor

17  Mandatory distributions:
a Is the organization required under state law to make charntable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming license? - e . [ Yes J No
b Enter the amount of distributions requwed under state Iaw to be dlstrrbuted to other exempt organizations or
spent in the organization’s own exempt activities during the tax year »  §

4\l  Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part I, Iine 2b,
columns (iii) and (v), and Part lli, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also complete thts
part to provide any additional information (see instructions).

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011




| OMB No 1545-0047

2011

SCHEDULE J Compensation Information

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees

. e I at i
Deprtmentof e Tressuy » Complete if the orgaglaz?ttierllﬁ‘nes;v;red Yt.es to F<.>rm 990, Open to P_ubllc
internal Revenue Service » Attach to Form 990. P See separate instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824
[ZIl Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1a Check the appropriate box(es) If the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Il to provide any relevant information regarding these items
[ First-class or charter travel Housing allowance or residence for personal use
(3 Travel for companions [[] Payments for business use of personal residence
{(J Tax indemnification and gross-up payments (J Heaith or social club dues or initiation fees
(J Discretionary spending account [J Personal services (e g, maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a wntten policy regarding payment
or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If “No,” complete Part Il to
explan. . - . . - 1b | ¥
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by a|| officers,
directors, trustees, and the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 1a? . 2 |V
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization’s CEO/Executive Director Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a
related organization to establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director Explain in Part I
(] Compensation committee Whritten employment contract
(] Independent compensation consultant [0 Compensation survey or study
(] Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee
4  During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? .. - R 4a v
b Participate In, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retlrement plan’7 e 4b v
¢ Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? . . . . 4c v
If “Yes” to any of ines 4a—c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part m
Only section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5  For persons listed in Form 990, Part VI, Section A, hne 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of:
a Theorgamzation? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . T T v
b Any related organization? .. Co Co C e e Coe 5b v
If “Yes" to line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III
6 For persons histed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:
a Theorganization? . - Co . .o o - . 6a v
b Anyrelated organization? . . . . .o - . 6b v
If “Yes” to line 6a or 6b, describe In Part III
7  For persons listed in Form 990, Part VIi, Section A, line 1a, did the orgamzation provide any non-fixed
payments not described in lines 5 and 67 If “Yes,” describe in Partill . . .o . 7 v
8  Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject
to the initial contract exceptron described In Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” describe
nPartlil . . . . 8 v
9 If “Yes” to line 8, d|d the orgamzatlon also foIIow the rebuttable presumptlon procedure descnbed n
Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? . . .o o R Coe 9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 500537 Schedule J (Form 990) 2011




1102 (066 wi04) { 8INpayos

() 9l
U]
() St
)
(n) vi
0]
() €}
[43
4%
(/13
6
8
L
9zv'eyL 9¥6'spL 0sb'L 0 0 0 96b'phL 0 (e) (Kiees oun3) ssapues Ano
(w) 9
£L9°2€L L09'8gL 962'22 £L5'0L 0 0 ZeLsot I ouljosoy pJeyary
(n) S
0 0 U]
(u) 14
€LL'TE 6L6'LE 000°'0¢ 0 0 0 6L6°L () (Q) siaeq yoer
0 0 0 0 (n) €
006'6¢ SZL'VE sZL'vE 0 ajnoids uyor
(n) 4
089'8¥L ZLY'SSL 0 vap'El 0 0 8v6'LYL 0 ouewoy auaij
() 1
0£S'EL2 LLb'SLZ ¥60'62 0 0 0 LLE'98L ) (e) (Ksejes oin3) soued siPiued
uonesuaduod
066 o4 Joud uonesuadwod 9|qepodas uoiesuadwod uonesuadwod
ui pausjop se papodal - sppeuaq pa.1Iajep JALI0 BUIO (1) aAUdUI g snuog (1) aseg (1) awen (v)
uonesusdwod () | suwinjoo o ferol. (3) sjgexeluoN (a) pUE JuaWBNBY (9)
uonesuadwod DSIN-6601 J0/PUB g-M\ JO umopyeaig (g)

"[ENPIAIDUI JBY} JOj Sjunowse (3) pue (Q) uwnjod s|qedlidde ‘B| sul| ‘y U011O8S ‘|IA HBd ‘066 WO JO JUNOWE |10} 2y} [enba jsnul [enpIAipul pajsi| yoes 1oy (1-(1)(g) Suwnjoo j0 wns sy] "ajoN
i ‘IIA HBd ‘066 WO UO Pa)SI| J0U a4B JBY} S[enpliaipul Aue 1S Jou 0o *(I) MOJ UO ‘SUOI}ONJISUI
By} w paquosap ‘suohieziuebio pajejss woy pue (1)) mos uo uoneziuebio ay) woyy uolesusdwod podal ‘1 8iNPayds Ul papodal 8g 1SNW UONESUSAWIOD 8SOYM [BNPIAIPUI YIBS IO

‘papasu s) aoeds [euonippe ji sa1dod ajeodnp as ‘saakojdw3 pajesuadwos 3saybiy pue ‘sesAojdwg A9y ‘S9s)sni ‘'s1019311Q ‘SI192130 E
Z obed 1102 (066 Wio) r 3INPAYSS




1102 (066 waod)  3INPayss

uawkojdwa jo uonipuos palinbal € se ‘aauapisal PaUMO J00YIS € Ul SapISal SUSLIY Ul 101931iQ [00YIS 3y - B| dury ‘| Med [ 3[npayos

. ‘uoneuwLIojul [euoippE Aue 1o} ued siy) 818jdwod os|y
Il Wed Joj pue ‘g pue ‘7 ‘qQ ‘eg ‘g ‘G ‘Op ‘Qy ‘Bp ‘€ ‘L ‘Bl Saul| ‘| Ued Jo} pasnbai suonduosap 10 ‘uoneueidxe ‘uoljewiojul 8Y) apiroid o} ped syl 818jdwo)
uoneuwuoju| [eyuawa|ddng E

e wm& 1102 (066 Wiod) I INPaYdS




SCHEDULE M
(Form 990)

| OMB No 1545-0047

2011

Open To Public
Department of the Treasury P

Internal Revenue Service Inspection
Name of the organization ) Employer identification number

Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824
Types of Property

Noncash Contributions

» Complete if the organizations answered “Yes” on Form
990, Part IV, ines 29 or 30.
» Attach to Form 990.

(a) (b) © (@)
Checkif | Number of contributions or Noncash contribution Method of determining

t rt
applicable items contributed Foranngg Spfrs(\)/uﬁcf.::m noncash contribution amounts

Art—Works of art
Art—Historical treasures .
Art—Fractional interests .
Books and publications
Clothing and household
goods . .o
Cars and other vehicles
Boats and planes
Intellectual property .
Secunities—Publicly traded . . v 4 69,090|FMV on date of gift
Secunities—Closely held stock .
Secunties —Partnership, LLC,
or trust interests
12 Secunties—Miscellaneous
13  Qualified conservation
contnibution—Historic
structures . .
14  Qualified conservation
contribution—Qther
15  Real estate—Residential .
| 16  Real estate—Commercial
17  Real estate—Other
18 Collectibles
19  Food inventory .
20  Drugs and medical supplies .
21 Taxidermy
22  Historical artifacts .
23  Scientific specimens
24  Archeological artifacts

AL WwN =

- O O oO~N®

- -k

25 Other» ( )
26 Other» ( )
27  Other» ( )
28  Other» ( )
29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for
which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement . 29 0

Yes| No

30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1-28 that
} it must hold for at least three years from the date of the imitial contribution, and which 1s not required to be
used for exempt purposes for the entire holding period? . . . . . . . 30a v

b If “Yes,” describe the arrangement in Part Il
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any non-standard

contnbutions? . . . . . . . . . . . e e e . 31| v
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
contributions? e e e . 32a v

b If “Yes,” describe in Part (I
33  If the organization did not report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) 1s checked,
describe in Part Il

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 51227J Schedule M (Form 990) (2011)




Schedule M {Form 990) (2011)

Page 2

O  Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the information required by Part 1, lines 30b, 32b,
and 33, and whether the organization Is reporting in Part |, column (b), the number of contributions, the
number of items received, or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.

Schedule M {(Form 990} (2011)



SCHEDULE O | omBNo 1545-0047

{Form 990 or 990-E2) Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 2011

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on

90 - i ny additional information. A
Department of the Treasury Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional i atio Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service > Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Inspection
Name of the organization ) Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 11b

The Treasurer and Secretary of the Board review the Form 990 and related Schedules before a full copy is provided to the full Board.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 12¢

All Trustees, Officers, key employees and senior administrative staff are provided, annually, with the School's Conflict of Interest Policy

file at the School's office. Any noted conflict must be reported to the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees, which shall either

_determine that a conflict does or does not exist and/or refer a potential conflict to the full Board for such determination/resolution.

_None have been reported.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 15b

An independent academic committee of the School reviews new employee candidates and the Chair of that committee, in consultation with

staff and after reviewing market data, makes a compensation recommendation. A similar process is used annually, after performance

reviews and consideration of market conditions, to make compensation recommendations. All compensation recommendations are

The School makes its governing documents, conflict of interest, Federal 990 and its audited financial statements available to the public

upon request.

Form 990, Part XI, Line 5 and Schedule d, Part XIl, Line 2a

The number represents Unrealized Losses on investments.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat No 51056K Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2011)




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) (2011) Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824
TForm 990, PartVIl, Séction A Continued
et e PR 1]
221a"|B Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
©
Position
A ® {do not check more than one © & ®
Name and title Average | box, unless person Is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | officer and a director/trustee) | compensation |compensation from amount of
week oslslol=laez] = from related other
(descrbe | 23 | 2| | &|3&| ¢ the organizations compensation
hoursfor | 52|21 8| a %?3' 3| orgamization | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related | SE 1 E| |3 (g2 | " |w-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| S =8 g S and related
inSchedule| & | 5 8 b organizations
0) e a 7
g g
&
(15) (26) Guy Sanders
Director of Corinth Excavation 40.0 v 144,496 0 1,450
(16) (27) Richard Rosolino
Budget Director 40.0 v 105,732 0 32,869
(17)
(18)
{19) B
(20) -
(21)
(22) ]
(23)
(24)
2
1b Sub-total . e e, | 4 250,228 0 34,319
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A > (
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c) . . > ,

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2011}




o /7,4“.4‘4
. 0] 12

Yo 8858 Application for Extension of Time To File an

Exempt Organization Return o
{Rev January 2012) p g R OMB No 1545-1709

Deparimant of the Treasury » File a separate application for each return.
Intemal Revenue Service

» It you are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Part 1 and check this box L. B [
* If you are fiing for an Additional {Not Automatic) 3-Month Extension, complete only Part If (on page 2 of this form)
Do not complete Part Il unless you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 if you need a 3-month automatic extension of time to file (6 months for
a corporation required to file Form 990-T), or an additional (not automatic) 3-month extension of time. You can electronically file Form
8868 to request an extenston of time to file any of the forms listed in Part | or Part Il with the exception of Form 8870, Information
Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit Contracts, which must be sent to the IRS mn paper format (see
mstructnons). For more details on the electronic filing of this form, visit www irs gov/efile and click on e-file for Charities & Nonprofits.

P: Automatic 3-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed)

A corporatxon required to file Form 990-T and requesting an automatic 6-month exlension—check this box and complete
Partionly . . 0
All other corporations (/nc/udlng 1120 C f/lers) partnersh/ps REM/Cs and trusts must use Forrm 7004 to request an extension of time
to file income tax returns.

Enter filer's identifying number, see instructions

Type or Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions Employer identification number (EIN) or
print Trustees of the Amencan School of Classical Studies at Athens 13-5658824

File by he Number, stieet, and room or suite no if a PO box, see instructions Social security number (SSN)

duedate tor | 6-8 Charllon Street O

ii‘&%ﬂy"s"ée City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code For a foreign address, see mstructions

Instructions Princeton , New Jersey 08540-5323

Enter the Retyrn code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each return) . . . ELT_]
Application Return | Application ; Return
Is For Code |}ls For Code
Form 990 01 Forrn 890-T (corporation) 07

_Form 990-BL 0z Form 1041-A 08
Form 990-EZ 01 Form 4720 09
Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (sec 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 i
Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12

¢ The pooks are in the care of » American School, Princeton, NJ

Telephone No B 609-683-0800 FAXNo ®» . 609-924-0578
« If the crganization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this box . »
* if this 1s for a Group Return, enter the orgamzation's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . _Lifthiss
for the whole group, check thisbox . ¥ [ itis for part of the group, check this box . » [ ]and altach

a Iist with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for
1 | request an automatic 3-month (6 months for a corporation required to file Form 990-T) extension of time

untit | February , 20 13 , 1o file the exempt organization return for the organization named above. The extension is
for the organization's return for.

» [Jcalendar year20 _ or

¥ /] tax year beginning July 1 ,20 11, and ending June 30 .20 12

2 Ii the tax year entered in ine 1 1s for less than 12 months, check reason. [}inmitai return [} Final return
(] Change 1n accounting period

3a If this apphcation is for Form 990-BL, 990-PF, 930-T, 4720, or 6089, enter the tentative {ax, less any
nonrefundable credits See instructions 3a |%

b If this application 1s for Form 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6089, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made Include any pnor year overpayment allowed as a credit 3b |$

¢ Balance due. Subtract ine 3b from line 3a Include your payment with this form, if required, by using
EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System) See instructions 3¢ |$

Caution. If you are gaing to make an electronic fund withdrawal with this Form 8868, see Form §453-EO and Form 8878-EQ for payment instructions

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see Instructions Cat No 27916D Form 8868 (Rev 1-2012)
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AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)




M
KPMG LLP

Suite 200
1305 Walt Whitman Road
Melville, NY 11747-4302

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
American School of Classical Studies
at Athens-

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of American School of Classical
Studies at Athens (the School) as of June 30, 2012, and the related statements of activities and cash flows
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the School’s management. Our
responstbility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year
summarized comparative information has been derived from the School’s 2011 financial statcments and, 1n
our report dated December 21, 2011, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate n the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opmmion on the cffectiveness of the School’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also mcludcs
examining, on a test basis, cvidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statcments,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a rcasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of American School of Classical Studies at Athens as of June 30, 2012, and the changcs
In 1ts net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

KPMe LIP

November 9, 2012

KPMG LLP 1s a Delaware limited hLability partnershp,
the US member firm of KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG international”), a Swiss entity



AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES

AT ATHENS
Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2012

(with comparative financial information as of June 30, 2011)

Asscts

Cash and cash equivalents

Contributions and other receivablcs, net

Accrued investment income

Prepaid expenses

Investments (notes 2 and 3)

Plant assets, net of accumulated depreciation (note 5)

Total asscts
Liabilitics and Net Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue ’

Total habilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Operating
Designated for future capital projects
Investment 1n plant assets

Total unrestricted

Temporarily restricted (note 8)
Permanently restricted (note 8)

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$

2012 2011
861,569 1,298,769
1,278,689 1,104,345
421,865 499,957
128,906 90,766
144,217,785 158,848,651
5,644,273 5,947,107
152,553,087 167,789,595
595,334 612,225
155,555 166,278
750,889 778,503
61,687,893 69,656,626
675,317 585,317
5,644,273 5,947,107
68,007,483 76,189,050
60,340,534 67,758,329
23,454,181 23,063,713
151,802,198 167,011,092
152,553,087 167,789,595




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2012
(with summarized financial information for the year ended June 30, 2011)

2012
Temporarily Permanently 2011
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total Total
Operating revenues, gains, losses and other support
Student tuition and fees $ 522,151 — — 522,151 571,788
Federal awards 255.794 — — 255,794 280,214
Contributions and grants 830,448 1,685,142 390,468 2,906,058 3,224,766
[nvestment return authonzed for use
n operations (note 4) 5,845,296 776,204 — 6,621,500 6,646,199
Other revenues 364,336 — — 364,336 812,447
Total operaung revenues, gans
and losses 7,818,025 2,461,346 390,468 10,669,839 11,535,414
Nel assets released from restrictions (note 7) 5,293,884 (5,293,884) — — —
Total operating revenues, gains,
losses and other support 13,111,909 (2,832,538) 390,468 10,669,839 11,535414
Operating expenses (note 6)
Program services
Instruction 1,653,960 — — 1,653,960 1,680,387
Publications 850,377 — — 850,377 840,179
Libraries 2,549,276 — — 2,549,276 2.662,961
Excavations and research 4,179,225 — — 4,179,225 3,489,876
General adnministration 2,153,610 — — 2,153,610 2.337,086
Total operating expenses 11,386,448 — — 11,386,448 11,010,489
Increase (decrease) in net
assets from operating activities 1,725,461 (2,832,538) 390,468 (716,609) 524,925
Other revenues, gams (losses) and other support
Investment (loss) return less amounts authorized
for use 1n operations (note 4) (9,907,028) (4,585,257) — (14,492 ,285) 23,583,228
(Decrease) increase in net assets (8,181,567) (7,417,795) 390,468 (15,208,894) 24,108,153
Net assets as of beginning of year 76,189,050 67,758,329 23,063,713 167,011,092 142,902,939
Net assets as of end of year $ 68,007,483 60,340,534 23,454,181 151,802,198 167,011,092

See accompanying notes to financial statements




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2012
(with comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2011)

2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities'
(Decreasce) increase in net assets $ (15,208,394) 24,108,153
Adjustments to reconcile (decrease) increase n net assets to
net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation expense 669,452 661,936
Net realized and unrealized losses (gains) 9,474,684 (28,353,436)
Contributions restricted for long-term investment and
acquisitions of plant assets (2,148,643) (1,733,373)
Changes 1n assets and habilities:
Contributions and other receivables (532,549) 108,367
Accrued 1nvestment income 78,092 44,300
Prepaid expenses (38,140) 23,984
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (16,891) (2,072)
Deferred revenue (10,723) 11,135
Net cash used m operating activities (7,733,612) (5,131,006)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Procecds from sales and maturities of investments 336,154,228 217,238,024
Purchases of investiments (330,998,046) (213,140,478)
Acquisitions of plant assets (366,618) (312,174)
Nct cash provided by investing activities 4,789,564 3,785,372
Cash flows from financing activities.
Contnibutions restricted for long-term investment and acquisitions
of plant assets 2,148,643 1,733,373
Decrease (increase) in contributions receivable related to plant
assets and endowment 358,205 (355,021)
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,506,848 1,378,352
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (437,200) 32,718
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of year 1,298,769 1,266,051
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of year $ 861,569 1,298,769

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2011)

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

American School of Classical Studies at Athens (the School), founded in 1881, offers both graduatc
students and scholars the opportunity to study Greek civilization first hand in Grecce The School’s
mission is to teach the archaeology, art, history, language, and literature of Greece from early timcs to the
present, to survey and excavate archaeological sites in Greece, and to publish the results of its excavation
and research.

The School is an orgamization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Codc and
therefore 1s exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Code

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, have
been prepared to focus on the School as a whole and to present balances and transactions according
to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changces
therein are classified as follows:

o Permanently restricted net assets — net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that thcy
be maintained permanently by the School. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the
School to use all or part of the income earned on related investments for general or specific
purposes.

. Temporarily restricted net assets — net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that will be
met by actions of the School and/or by the passage of time.

o Unrestricted net assets — net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the related assct 1s limited
by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses arc reported as decreases 1n unrestricted net assets. Realized
and unrealized gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increascs
or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by
law. Expiration of temporary restrictions on net assets 1s reported as net assets released from
restrictions.

Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional, that 1s,
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions of assets other than
cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at date of donation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2011)

Contributions receivable are expected to be recetved during the indicated time periods and have been
discounted for the time value of money as of June 30:

2012 2011
One year or less $ 244,000 334,104
Between one and five years 200,000 474,000
444,000 808,104
Less'
Present value discount (1.063% - 5.063%) (4,700) (10,599)
$ 439,300 797,505

Release of Restrictions on Net Assets Used for Acquisition of Plant Assets

Contributions of plant assets without donor stipulations concerning the use of such long-lived assets
are reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class. Contributions of cash or other assets to be
used to acquire plant assets without such donor stipulations are reported as revenues of the
temporarily restricted net assct class; the restrictions are considered to be released at the time such
acquired long-lived assets are placed 1n service.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing program services and support services of the School have been summarized
on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain operating costs have been
allocated among the functional categories.

The School’s primary program services are instruction, publications, libraries and excavations and
research. Expenses reported as general administration are incurred in support of these program
services. Fundraising costs, included in general administration expenses, were approximately
$211,000 and $304,000 in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Works of Art, Historical Treasures and Similar Assets

Works of art and historical treasures held as part of a collection - for education and/or research - arc
not recognized or capitalized in the accompanying financial statements.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are so near their maturity (original maturities of three months or less) that they
present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates, except for those
managed as a component of the School’s investment portfolio
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2011)

Foreign Currency Transactions

The School’s accounting records in Greece are maintained in Euro’s Transactions in Euro’s arc
converted into U.S. dollars at average monthly exchange rates during the year. The average exchange
rate for fiscal 2012 and 2011 was 1.338 and 1.371, U.S. dollar to onc Euro, respectively. Cash held
in Euro’s has been translated into U.S. dollars at the foreign exchange rate in cffect as of June 30,
2012 and 2011, which was 1.242 and 1.442, U.S. dollar to one Euro, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. A fair value hierarchy was
established, which requires an entity to maxinuze the use of obscrvable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that
may be used to measure fair value:

U Level 1' Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabihities. Level 1 assets and
liabilities include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market, as
well as U.S. Treasury securities.

. Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar asscts
or liabilities; quotes prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities, as well as any alternative investments (measured at net asset value) that arc
redeemable at or near the date of the statement of financial position. Level 2 assets and
liabilities include debt securities with quoted market prices that are traded less frequently than
exchange-traded instruments. This category generally includes certain U.S. Government and
agency mortgage-backed debt securities, corporate-debt securities and certain alternative
investments.

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that arc
significant to the fair value of the asset or liabilities, as well as any alternative investments
(measure at net asset value) that are not redeemable near the date of the statement of financial
position. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial mstruments whose value 1s determined
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologtes, or similar techniques, as well as
instruments for which the detecrmination of fair value requires significant management
judgment or estunation. This category generally includes certain private debt and cquity
instruments and certain alternative investments

Fair value estimates are made at a spccific point in time, based on available market information and
judgments about the financial assct, including estimates of timing, amount of cxpected futurc cash
flows and the credit standing of the issuer. In some cases, the fair value estimates cannot be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets. In addition, the disclosed fair value may not be
realized 1n the immediate settlement of the financial asset. In addition, the disclosed fair valucs do
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not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time an entire
holding of a particular financial asset. Potential taxes and other expenses that would be incurred n an
actual sale or settlement are not reflected in amounts disclosed.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized in the financial statements and mecasurced at fair value
regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them. The fair value of the derivatives held 1s based
upon values provided by third-party financial institutions.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The School maintains a significant and diverse investment portfolio which includes money markct
funds, U.S. Government obligations, debt and equity securities and alternative investments.
Alternative investments mclude interests in limited partnerships. These instruments may contain
elements of both credit and market risk. Such risks include, but are not limited to, limited Liquidity,
absence of regulatory oversight, dependence on key individuals and nondisclosure of portfolio
composition. The School reviews the performance and risks associated with these investments on at
least a monthly basis. In addition, the School utilizes the services of an investment consultant who
continually monitors the individual investment fund performance, any changes in management at the
investment fund or any other significant matters affecting the fund and advises the School of any
such changes.

As the School is dependent on investment return to fund a significant portion of the operations of the
School, a significant decrease in mvestment return may have a material impact on thc financial
position, changes in net assets, and cash flows of the School.

Prior Year Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but
not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the ycar ended Junc 30,
2011, from which the summarized information was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally acccpted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affcct the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the datc of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2011 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2012
presentation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2011)

Subsequent Events

FASB ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events (ASC 855), establishes principles and requirements for
subsequent events and applies to accounting for and disclosures of subsequent events not addressed
in other applicable generally accepted accounting principles. The School evaluated events
subsequent to June 30, 2012 and through November 9, 2012, the date on which the financial
statements were issued.

Investments
Overall Investment Objective

The overall investment objective of the School is to invest 1ts assets in a prudent manner that will achieve a
long-term rate of return sufficient to fund a portion of its annual operating activities and incrcase
investment value after inflation. The School diversifies its mvestments among various asset classes,
incorporating multiple strategies and managers. Major investment decisions are authorized by the Board’s
Investment Committee, which oversees the School’s investment program in accordance with cstablished
guidelines

Allocation of Investment Strategies

In addition to traditional stocks and fixed-income securities, the School also holds shares or units m
traditional institutional funds as well as in alternative investment funds involving hedged stratcgies.
Hedged strategies nvolve funds whose managers have the authority to invest in various assct classes at
their discretion, including the ability to invest long and short. Funds with hedged strategies generally hold
securities or other financial instruments for which a ready market cxists and may include stocks, bonds, put
or call options, swaps, currency hedges and other instruments, and are valued accordingly Other hedged
strategies may require the estimation of fair values by the fund managers in the abscnce of rcadily
determinable market values. Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation, which may be based on
historical cost, appraisals or other estimates that require varying degrees of judgment, these cstimated fair
values may differ significantly from values that would have been used had a ready market existed, and the
differences could be material. Such valuations are determined by fund managers and generally consider
variables such as operating results, comparable earmings multiples, projected cash flows, reccnt sales
prices, and other pertinent information, and may reflect discounts for the illiquid nature of certain
investments held. Morcover, the fair values of the School’s interests tn shares or units of these funds,
because of liquidity and capital commitment terms that vary depending on the specific fund or partnership
agreement, may differ from the fair value of the funds’ underlying net assets. The School’s interest in these
funds are reported at net asset value (NAV). NAV is used as a practical expedient to measurc fair valuc.
Classification of these fund investments in Level 2 or 3 1s based on the School’s ability to redeem its
interest at or near the date of the statement of financial position, and if the interest can bc redeemed mn the
near term, the investment 1s classified as Level 2.

The School invests 1n investment grade short-term debt mstruments and limits the amount of cicedit
exposure to any one entity.
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The School’s portfolfo also includes certain types of financial instruments, such as foreign currcncy

forward contracts, which involve varying degrees of off-balance sheet risk (see note 3).

Investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 2012 and 2011:

Cash and cash equivalents h)
Euro currency holdings

U.S. Government obligations
Foreign bonds and equities

U.S. corporate equities

U.S. corporate bonds and debentures
Commodity exchange traded fund
Mutual fund - government securtities
International value equity trust
Limuted partnership

Private equity

Foreign currency forward contracts

10

2012 2011
17,593,930 19,331,951
11,023,032 13,183,935

627,900 469,200
18,468,809 23,020,153
47,192,243 51,609,751

8,163,782 9,698,385
4,655,700 4,379,400
17,609,598 16,255,618
12,233,122 13,551,118
5,964,958 6,643,853

534,420 666,597

150,291 38,690
144,217,785 158,848,651
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The following table presents the School’s fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilitics mcasurcd at
fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2012:

Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments-

Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,593,930 17,593,930 — —
Euro currency holdings 11,023,032 11,023,032 — —
U S Government obligations 627,900 627,900 — —
Foreign bonds and equities 18,468,809 — 18,468,809 —
U.S. corporate equities 47,192,243 47,192,243 —_ —
U S corporate bonds and —_

debentures 8,163,782 8,163,782 — —
Commodity exchange

traded fund 4,655,700 4,655,700 — —
Mutual fund - government

securities 17,609,598 —_ 17,609,598 —
International value equity trust 12,233,122 — 12,233,122 —
Limited partnership 5,964,958 — 5,964,958 —
Private equity 534,420 — — 534,420
Foreign currency forward

contracts 150,291 — — 150,291

Total $ 144,217,785 89,256,587 54,276,487 684,711

11 (Continued)



AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2011)

The following table presents the School’s fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2011:

Fair
value Level | Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments-
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,331,951 19,331,951 — —
Euro currency holdings 13,183,935 13,183,935 — —
U S Government obligations 469,200 469,200 — —
Foreign bonds and equities 23,020,153 — 23,020,153 —
U S corporate equities 51,609,751 51,609,751 — —
U S corporate bonds and
debentures 9,698,385 9,698,385 — —
Commodity exchange
traded fund 4,379,400 4,379,400 — —
Mutual fund - government
securities 16,255,618 — 16,255,618 —
International value equity trust 13,551,118 — 13,551,118 —
Limited partnership 6,643,853 — 6,643,853 —
Private equity 666,597 — — 666,597
Foreign currency forward
contracts 38,690 — — 38,690
Total $ 158,848,651 98,672,622 59,470,742 705,287

The following table presents a reconciliation for all Level 3 assets measured at fair valuc for the period
July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012

Level 3 assets

Foreign
currency
Private forward
Equity contracts
Financial assets:

Beginning balance July 1, 2011 $ 666,597 38,690
Total unrealized (losses) gains (41,313) 111,601
Total realized gains (losses) 44,134 (3,459,461)
Redemptions (134,998) (303,470,786)
Purchases — 306,930,247

Ending balance June 30, 2012 $ 534,420 150,291
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Investment liquidity as of June 30, 2012 1s aggregated below bascd on redemption or sale period:

Investment
fair values

Investment redemption or sale period:

Daily $ 107,725,396
Monthly 35,807,678
Maturity every two months 150,291
Subject to rolling lock-ups 534,420

Total as of June 30, 2012 $ 144,217,785

Redemption Restrictions

At June 30, 2012 and 2011, the School’s alternative investments included $6,115,249 and $6,682,543,
respectively, which were not restricted from redemption. The terms and conditions upon which the School
may redeem such alternative investments 1s six days written notice. Also included in the June 30, 2012
private equity investment 1s $534,420 which is subject to a lock-up period until October 31, 2012, at which
time the investment matures and will be closed out.

(3) Derivative Financial Instruments

During 2012 and 2011, the School entered into foreign currency forward contracts with various maturity
dates. The foreign currency forward contracts are a partial hedge to limit the School’s exposure to changes
in exchange rates. Under the terms of the contract, the School has committed to purchase Euro currency at
a fixed exchange rate for 20,000,000 U.S. dollars on the maturity date of the contract, August 15, 2012

The fair value of the forward contracts was $150,291 and $38,690 as of Junc 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The School reports these derivative financial instruments at fair value in the accompanying
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, with any gains and losses recognized 1n the
statement of activities.

(4) Investment Return

Investment return consists of interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losscs on
investments. Each year, the School includes a portion of 1ts investment return in its opcrating budget, with
the amount of such planned support determined using its spending policy. The policy of the School 1s to
distribute for current spending a percentage of the five year moving average of the fair value of pooled
investments as of December 31, currently 4.5%, annually.
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June 30, 2012

The components of investment return for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were as follows-

Interest and dividends

Net realized and unrealized (losses) gains

Investment advisory fees

Total investment return

Investment return authorized for use 1n operations

Investment loss return less amounts authorized

for use 1n operations

Plant Assets

2012 2011
$ 2,059,791 2,348,468
(9,474,684) 28,353,436
(455,892) (472,477)
(7,870,785) 30,229,427
(6,621,500) (6,646,199)
$  (14,492,285) 23,583,228

Plant assets are stated at cost or fair value at date of donation and are comprised of the following as of

June 30, 2012 and 2011:

Building improvements
Blegen Library
Davis and Blegen Library
Loring Hall
Gennadius Library
Apartment at Athens
Other buildings

Equipment

Construction (n progress

19,006,628

13,362,355

2012 2011
Net Net
Carrying  Accumulated carrying Carrying  Accumulated carrying

value depreciation value value depreciation value
2,484,879 2,467,206 17,673 2.484.879 2,460,110 24.769
200,000 200,000 — 200,000 200.000 —
200,800 200,800 — 200.800 200,800 —
9,009,704 4,920,014 4,089,690 9,009.704 4,632,320 4,377,384
87,999 87,999 — 87,999 87.999 —
3.041,055 2,243,064 797,991 2,976,049 2,037.450 938.599
3,522,252 3.243,272 278,980 3,440,431 3,074,224 366.207
459.939 — 459,939 240,148 — 240,148
5,644,273 18,640,010 12.692.903 5.947.107

Depreciation of building improvements and equipment s provided by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from five to ten years.

The School expenses the purchases of books for its libraries. The School maintained approximately
221,700 and 218,300 volumes that were housed in the Gennadius and Blegen Libraries during 2012 and

2011, respectively.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses by natural classification for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 weic as follows:

2012 2011

Salaries $ 4,684,747 4,823,252
Payroll tax, pension, and benefits 1,451,267 1,630,014
Fellowships 484,097 494215
Excavation, program and research costs 2,248,108 1,235,077
Legal 64,416 65,315
Other professional fees 119,276 115,217
Telephone/utilities 455,866 424319
Postage 25,003 25,479
Occupancy 110,504 115,605
Minor equipment and supplies 256,498 274,258
Depreciation 669,453 661,936
Other 817,213

$ 11,386,448 11,010,489

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Donor restrictions were met by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by occurrence of

events specified by the donors for the year ended June 30, 2012 as follows:

|
|
|
|
|
1,145,802

Amount
Instruction/fellowships $ 1,108,383
Publications 646,131
Libraries 901,058
Excavations and research and acquisitions of plant assets 2,521,772
General administration and other 116,540
$ 5,293,884
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(8) Reostrictions and Limitations on Net Asset Balances
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of gifts and other unexpended revenues and gains available for
the following as of June 30, 2012 and 2011:

2012 2011
Instruction/fellowships $ 18,149,944 13,364,505
Publications 10,137,462 17,350,601
Libraries 13,165,407 16,557,364
Excavations and research 13,342,334 14,649,976
Acquisitions of plant assets 5,545,387 5,835,883
$ 60,340,534 67,758,329

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets consisted of endowment gifts with income to be used for the following as
of June 30, 2012 and 201 1"

2012 2011
Instruction/fellowships $ 5,386,393 5,372,524
Publications 082,599 982,599
Libraries 6,483,847 6,184,748
Excavations and research 4,537,431 4,509,931
General administration 6,063,911 6,013,911
$ 23,454,181 23,063,713

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires the School to retain as a fund of perpctual duration. In
accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature are to be reported in unrestricted net asscts as of ycar
end. These deficiencies result from unfavorable market fluctuations that occur shortly after the imvestment
of ncw permanently restricted contributions and continued appropriation for certain programs that arc
deemed prudent by the board of trustees. There were no such deficiencies as of June 30, 2012 or 2011.

16 (Continued)




AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2011)

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The board of trustees of the School has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the purchasing power of the original gift as of the
gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. The
School classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and
(c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made 1n accordance with the direction of the applicable
donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation 1s added to the fund. The investment income earned on
the accumulations to the permanently restricted endowment funds 1s classified as temporarily restricted net
assets until the donor-imposed restrictions have been met and appropriated by the Board for expenditurc.

Spending Policy

The School has a policy of appropnating, each year, for distribution 4.5% of its cndowment fund’s average
fair value, as of December 31, over the prior five years preceding the fiscal year in which the distribution 1s
planned. In establishing this policy, the School considered the long-term expected return on 1ts endowment
Accordingly, over the long term, the School expects the current spending policy to allow 1ts ecndowment to
grow at an average of a least 2% annually. This is consistent with the School’s objective to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity as well as provide additional real growth
through new gifts and investment returns.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The School has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income and growth, while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the
endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the School must
hold in perpetuity. Under this policy, as approved by the School’s board of trustees, the endowment asscts
arc invested 1n a manner that is intended to produce moderate to high rates of return whilc assuming a
moderate to low level of nvestment risk.

The following represents the net asset classes of the School’s board-designated and donor-restricted
endowment funds at June 30, 2012:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Board-designated endowment funds $ 65,294,891 — — 65,294,891
Donor-restricted endowment funds — 53,907,661 23,454,181 77,361,842
$ 65,294,891 53,907,661 23,454,181 142,656,733
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The following represents the net asset classes of the School’s donor-restricted endowment funds at

June 30, 2011:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Board-designated endowment funds $ 74,185,580 — — 74,185,580
Donor-restricted endowment funds — 60,964,732 23,063,713 84,028,445
$ 74,185,580 60,964,732 23,063,713 158,214,025

The following table presents changes in endowment net assets for the years ended Junc 30, 2012 and 201 1:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total

Endowment net assets at

July 1, 2010 $ 63,019,299 49,414,851 22,843,967 135,278,117
Net realized and unrealized losses 14,621,100 13,732,336 — 28,353,436
Interest and dividends, net of fees 967,398 908,593 — 1,875,991
Contributions — — 292,563 292,563
Appropriation of endowment

assets for expenditure (4,422,217) (3,091,048) — (7,513,265)
Reclassification of contribution — — (72,817) (72,817)
Endowment net assets at

June 30, 2011 74,185,580 60,964,732 23,063,713 158,214,025
Net realized and unrealized losses (4,889,427) (4,585,257) — (9,474,684)
Interest and dividends, net of fees 827,695 776,204 — 1,603,899
Contributions — — 390,468 390,468
Appropnation of endowment

assets for expenditure (3,463,482) (3,248,018) — (6,711,500)
Loss on currency exchange (1,365,475) — — (1,365,475)
Endowment net assets at

June 30, 2012 $ 65,294,891 53,907,661 23,454,181 142,656,733

Retirement Plan

The School has a defined contribution retirement plan covering U.S. citizen professional employees, which
1s funded on a current basis, principally by payments to the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association
and to The Vanguard Group. Pension expense amounted to approximately $180,000 and $175,000 for the

years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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(10) Commitments
Termination and Retirement Indemnities

In accordance with Greek law, compensation 1s payable to employees upon their dismissal, except for legal
cause. The amount of compensation 1s based on the number of years of service and amount of
remuneration at date of dismissal. Should the employees remain with the School until normal retirement
age, 40% of such compensation must be paid to them on retirement The School follows the policy of
paying managerial and clerical employees 60% of such compensation and paying other employces 50% of
such compensation. During the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, charges to opcrations for termination
and retirement indemnities were $25,347 and $180,746, respectively. No accrual for active employees has
been recorded in the accompanying statement of financial position. The maximum liability for termination
and retirement indemnities, if all employees are dismissed based on 100% of such compcnsation as of
June 30, 2012 and 2011, approximates $1,404,500 and $1,454,000, respectively.

Operating Lease

The School leases office space under an operating lease arrangement expiring April 30, 2017. Rental
expense for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 was $102,996 and $100,496, respectively. The
minimum annual rental commitment through 2017 is approximately $103,000 per year




